

Future Arctic Livelihoods and Biodiversity in a Changing Climate Proceedings of the first workshop

> Copenhagen March 16-17th, 2022

Edited by Martin Reinhardt Nielsen



Innovation Fund Denmark





Contents

Proceedings of the FutureArcticLives workshop in Copenhagen – March 20222
Quantifying reliance on hunting and inshore fishing in Greenland – Spatial differences and temporal developments 2012-2020
Hunter and inshore fisher household welfare implications in future scenarios of climate and biodiversity change in Greenland
Where and how to live? Regulation of coastal Fisheries in Greenland in the light of climate Change
Welfare implications of climate change for reindeer herding Saami in northern Sweden and Norway – A bioeconomic model
Coping with climate change - reindeer herder's preferences in Sweden and Norway10
An overview of climate change effects on reindeer herders in Sweden and Norway11
Optimal adaption strategies for sustainable reindeer husbandry in the face of climate change
Implications of climate and biodiversity change for coastal Saami well-being
Harvest control rules and adaptive local management initiatives in Porsanger
The potential for nature-based solutions: the role of understanding the possibilities for different actors in historically developed scaled systems
Scope for local use and adaptation in the regulatory frameworks relating to natural resources in Sweden and Norway
References

FutureArcticLives

Proceedings of the FutureArcticLives workshop in Copenhagen – March 2022

This document represents a collection of extended abstracts of some of the planned publications of FutureArcticLives. As a workshop proceeding, it is also the output of the first physical meeting of the project conducted in Copenhagen on March 16-17^{th,} 2022. The document intends to highlight options for collaboration across the project's work packages and with external actors.

To follow the project's activities and output, see <u>www.futurearcticlives.eu</u>





Quantifying reliance on hunting and inshore fishing in Greenland – Spatial differences and temporal developments 2012-2020

Authors: Martin Reinhardt Nielsen, Mona Estrelle Bachman, Henrik Meilby and Birger Poppel

People in smaller settlements along the coast of Greenland rely partly or entirely on hunting and coastal fishing for their food security, health and income (Rasmussen 2005; ECONOR 2008; ASI 2010; Hendriksen 2013). However, quantitative assessments of the importance of hunting and small-scale fishing in Greenland are scarce, and particularly the subsistence component is not visible in national income assessments (AHDR 2014).

Natural resources are unevenly distributed in time and space, posing a challenge for people who rely on wildlife and fish populations (Díaz et al., 2018). Historically, people have been able to shift to relying on other species when populations of some species declined, or management regulations tightened. However, such adaptive strategies are becoming increasingly constrained by climate-induced changes. Changing physical conditions affect the distribution of living natural resources by causing severe and often complex, interrelated alterations in ecosystems and along the food web (Huntington et al. 2020). Global warming is a non-linear process with periods of abrupt warming and regime shifts, including long-term transformations of ecosystems (Huntington et al., 2020).

Reduced hunting and fishing yields because of climate change, conservation initiatives or both may severely affect the material wealth and general well-being of hunting households without being detected in national income statistics (ECONOR 2008; ASI 2010).

This study, therefore, aims to quantify the reliance on wildlife and fish of traditional and inshore hunter and fisher households and evaluate the cause of change over time and the differences between locations. Predictions will be made about the likely prey target shifts because of regulations and climate change, identifying species likely to come under increased pressure. Finally, the study will identify specialised groups of hunters and fishers, targeting a particular portfolio of species or characterised by specific locations such as remote communities.

The study applies anonymised household-level statistics for all registered hunter and inshore fisher households in Greenland in the period 2012-2020 obtained from Piniarneq (the catch register database) and the tax authorities through Greenland Statistics. Combining information on catch, trade and household income from other sectors, the study will quantify both cash and subsistence reliance on wildlife and fish as the share in total household income following the Poverty-Environment Network approach (e.g. Nielsen et al. 2017 and 2018).

To test the association between reliance and changing biophysical conditions, reliance will be modelled against environmental predictors such as sea surface temperature (SST) and Sea Ice Concentration (SIC). SST is a good proxy of prey availability (Hoover et al. 2013a; Descamps et al. 2017) and shown to affect the abundance of arctic mammals such as narwhals (Chambault et al. 2020; Heide-Jørgensen et al. 2020), bowhead whales (Chambault et al. 2018), and sea birds like black-legged kittiwake (Descamps et al. 2017). Also, SIC has been shown to affect bearded seals (Boye et al. 2020), ringed seals (Yurkowski et al. 2016), narwhales (Louis et al.



2020), beluga whales (Hauser et al. 2018), bowhead whales (George et al. 2015) and polar bears (Laidre et al. 2015b).

Aiming to explore the effects of changing physical and ecological conditions on reliance requires acknowledging that the response to more abrupt changes might be different than the response to moderate ones (Descamps et al., 2017). The analysis will therefore apply methods such as threshold analysis or the sliding window approach to detect non-linear effects (Jenouvrier et al., 2005; Descamps et al., 2017). To account for spatial differences, such as higher reliance on hunting in more remote regions, we will include hunter residency as a random effect in the model. In addition, to incorporate species-specific responses to harvest and climate change, species will be included as random effects. Furthermore, species experts at the Greenland Institute for natural resources will be consulted to determine whether it would be more meaningful to subdivide locations at the population level (Hoover et al. 2013b). Other effects that will have to be considered are the type of hunter (occupational or recreational), equipment used (snowmobiles, boats or sledge dogs) and hunter and household characteristics. Hence, variables describing the cost of living (i.e. the consumer price index), hunting and fishing (e.g. fuel costs), as well as social services, household size, age of the hunter (hunting success varies over a lifetime, Walker et al. 2002), and location will be controlled for. Also, the quotas will be included to capture the effect of regulations on the reliance on individual species (Nielsen & Meilby 2013).

Overall, the study aims to make visible the high reliance on natural resources of arctic communities expected to rival and surpass that of communities in the Global South and, through that information, inform natural resource management and development policy in Greenland.

Intended journal: Ecological Economics



Hunter and inshore fisher household welfare implications in future scenarios of climate and biodiversity change in Greenland

Author: Martin Reinhardt Nielsen, Mona Estrella Bachman, Henrik Meilby and Birger Poppel

Climate change is occurring faster in the Arctic than in any other region (IPCC 2014), causing rapid large-scale ecological and social changes (ACIA 2005; CAFF 2013; AMAP 2013; AHDR 2014). Recent years have seen an exceptional decline in sea ice volume, area, age and thickness, while on land, the climate is becoming unpredictable with increasing rain, snow and thawing events during winter (Arctic Council 2016). Observed consequences include the disappearance or dramatic modification of habitats, ecosystems and populations, shifts in species' geographic range and the timing of ecological events and outbreaks of pests and disease (CAFF 2013). The Greenland and Antarctic ice sheets' rate of loss is now in line with the worst-case scenarios outlined by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) (Slater et al. 2020), and sea ice concentration and sea surface temperature will continue to change over the next few decades, depending on which emissions scenarios the world's governments will choose.

These changes will have severe consequences that can undermine established production patterns of hunting, fishing, gathering and herding by Arctic communities, negatively influencing their welfare and well-being (ECONOR 2008; AMAP 2011; Hoover et al. 2013a; CAFF 2013; AHDR 2014). Examples include a strong negative influence on seals, polar bears and narwhal - the basis for traditional Inuit communities in Greenland. Arctic mammals are an essential food, a cultural and economic resource for indigenous populations throughout the Arctic (Hovelsrud et al. 2008). People in smaller settlements along the coast of Greenland depend partly or entirely on hunting and coastal fishing for their food security, health and income (Rasmussen 2005; ECONOR 2008; Hendriksen 2013). However, quantitative assessments of the importance of hunting and small-scale fishing in Greenland are scarce, and particularly the subsistence component is not visible in national income assessments. Climate and biodiversity change furthermore occurs in a context of far-ranging economic, cultural and political change (ECONOR 2015), including commercial fisheries and tightening conservation measures. The combination of ecological and societal changes facing small-scale rural users and indigenous groups in this region through reduced hunting and fishing yields may well surpass their resilience and adaptive capacity, severely affecting their material wealth and general well-being detected in national income statistics (ECONOR 2008; ASI 2010) and therefore needs urgent assessment to reduce adverse social and ecological outcomes (Arctic Council 2016). Particularly social and economic forecasts and scenario assessments are required to assess the impacts of climate and biodiversity change on Arctic communities and explore adaptive management options under global policies and trends (NRC 2014; ECONOR 2015: Arctic Council 2016).

This study will therefore assess the potential impact of future climate and biodiversity change on household welfare in two climate change scenarios - a 1.5-2 degree IPCC emissions scenario, in line with the Paris Climate Agreement (Hoegh-Guldberg et al. 2018) and the most likely business-as-usual scenario of 3 °C (Hausfather & Peters 2020; IPCC 2021) - and associated implications for access to hunting and fishing of relevant species considering range shifts, population density change and likely regulations imposed (Hoover et al. 2013a).



The cash and subsistence contribution of relevant species will be quantified in monetary terms as the share in total household income based on data from Piniarneq (the catch register) and the tax authorities through Greenland Statistics for all hunter and costal fisher households in Greenland in the period 2012 to 2020. A literature review of species specific climate vulnerability will be conducted and species experts consulted to develop scenarios for each relevant population in the time frame of 2021 to 2040, according to the two temperature change scenarios provided by the PPCC (IPCC 2021) although additional assumptions will be needed. Similarly, expectations regarding the development of the tourism, transport and raw material industry (i.e. mining), will form the basis for exploring scenarios regarding this source of income for hunters in different areas and with different ages and educations.

Monte Carlo simulations will be conducted to assess the household welfare implications of changes in these future scenarios combining the implications of changes in hunting and fisheries as well as other sectors. The analysis will compare groups based on specialisation, wealth and location in terms of vulnerability to change measured as the income gap or welfare decline experienced in various future scenarios and proposed management recommendations. Results can be illustrated in maps facilitating optimisation of strategic investments in social services.

Intended journal: Conservation Biology



Where and how to live? Regulation of coastal Fisheries in Greenland in the light of climate Change

Authors: Birgitte Hoffman and Kåre Hendriksen

Greenland's most important industry is Fisheries, contributing 95% of exports and 91% of total export earnings. (Statistics Greenland 2021a) The fishing and fishing industry provides just over 4,100 jobs and thus accounts for 15% of total employment in Greenland (Statistics Greenland 2021b).

The three species, shrimp, halibut and cod, make up most of the catch that is exported as largely unprocessed raw materials. Hence the value added through processing is transferred to other countries. This high dependence on exports of a few species as unprocessed raw materials makes the Greenlandic economy vulnerable. At the same time, a sustainable economy is central to the vision of an independent Greenland. This points to the need to develop a more sustainable income portfolio.

However, the challenges remain considerable. The development needs to address the contextual conditions such as the extreme and changing climate conditions, the diverse settlements in the vast and disparate geography and the ongoing encounter between indigenous and modern cultures.

Here we take departure in the island operation as a unique feature of many small artic settlements that creates a strong dependency on societal infrastructure systems. (Nielsen 2000, Hendriksen 2013). Island operation in Greenland is based on the fact that there are no roads or other physical infrastructure connecting settlements, which means that the transport infrastructure includes only ships, planes, and helicopters. Furthermore, the arctic climate changes the viable modes of transport across the seasons. It is thus impossible to commute between settlements daily, and all settlements must have their own supply of power, water, and waste handling, as well as their own social infrastructures such as shops, a school, and healthcare. (Nordregio 2010, Hendriksen & Hoffmann 2017a) The island operation naturally creates considerable challenges in providing services to citizens and supporting business activities.

Accelerating climate change creates additional challenges to the systemic set op up of business development and livelihoods. In recent years, Greenland's nature and culture have gained global focus due to climate change. The sea ice is rapidly becoming thinner, and the polar bear and the hunter are becoming icons of the threatened Arctic nature and way of life. And in some districts, the risk of landslides and subsequent Tsunamis is putting pressure on existing settlements. At the same time, climate change creates improved access to Greenland's mineral wealth. It also opens new sailing routes in the Arctic, which has increased Greenland's geopolitical role, highlighted by increased superpower tensions and significant economic and military interests (Nuttal 2008, Breum 2013).

This paper explores the contemporary regulation of fisheries in relation to the development of livelihoods and adaptation potentials. It does so by taking a socio-technical approach, taking departure in the system building and path dependency of infrastructure constructed in the



colonial period to support specific cultural living standards and business profiles as a backdrop (March & Olsen 1989, Hoffman et al. 2022)

An important distinction in fishery management is between offshore and inland fishing, and this article focuses on how to regulate inland fishing. The Fisheries Commission (The Fisheries Commission 2021), set up by the Greenlandic Self-Government, proposes a change in regulation with the consequence that inland fishing is concentrated on fewer and larger vessels. The suggested change will have far-ranging implications beyond the fishing technology, including decisive impacts on business structure, settlement patterns and everyday life.

The proposal will change the existing practice, where most fish are caught from open dinghies or as longline fishing from the sea ice during winter. Most of the fishing for halibut takes place in Upernavik and Uummannaq districts as well as in Disko Bay – a coastline of approximately 1,000 km with a total of almost 1,100 dinghy fishermen in and represents an important source of income in small settlements.

The option of longline fishing with a dinghy and from the sea ice in smaller settlements with a first-sale facility has facilitated the maintenance of a decentralised settlement pattern. If implemented, the Fisheries Commission's suggestion will mean that these settlements will lose their income base, forcing people to move to larger cities. (Hendriksen & Jørgensen, 2015). However, several larger fishing cities are already challenged by limited and insufficient infrastructure, e.g. water resources and housing, to support further industrial development. Hence, it may not be feasible to conduct a higher degree of local processing and, through that, achieve the envisioned sustainability and local added value.

This paper, therefore, aims to provide an understanding of the requirements for sustainable future arctic livelihoods by analysing the interaction between the organisation of fisheries and the settlement patterns and societal infrastructures in the context of climate change.

Intended journal: Arctic



Welfare implications of climate change for reindeer herding Saami in northern Sweden and Norway – A bioeconomic model

Authors: Irmelin Slettemoen Helgesen, Anne Borge Johannesen, Göran Bostedt, and Erlend Dancke Sandorf

The Arctic is warming three times faster than the global average. It is predicted that rising temperatures could reduce the snow-covered season and increase plant productivity in the spring, fall and summer. While this may increase the carrying capacity and growth of semi-domesticated reindeer, rising temperatures could also increase rain-on-snow events during winter. Rain-on-snow creates hard ice layers in the snow, making it difficult for the reindeer to reach the lichen and negatively affecting their body mass, survival, and reproductive success. Moreover, the capacity of winter grazing areas tends to determine the maximum possible reindeer herd size, suggesting that climate change affecting winter conditions could be a factor in reducing maximum viable herd sizes.

Here we demonstrate how climate change affects the welfare of reindeer herders in a set of stylised areas; northern- and southern reindeer herding areas in Norway and mountain- and forest-Saami village areas in Sweden. To achieve this, we construct a stage-structured bioeconomic model of reindeer husbandry that incorporates the contrary effects of climate change on reindeer growth, reproduction, and survival. The model is calibrated using Norwegian data on reindeer numbers and slaughter weights in combination with historical climate data. Looking at three future climate scenarios (the shared social pathways, SSPS 119, 245 and 585), the model is used to study both a simulated future where current harvesting rates continue and the welfare-maximising rate of harvesting.

Intended journal: Natural Resource Modeling



Coping with climate change - reindeer herder's preferences in Sweden and Norway

Authors: Göran Bostedt, Anne Borge Johannesen, Erlend Dancke Sandorf, and Irmelin Slettemoen

Reindeer herding is of great importance to Saami communities, the only indigenous population of Scandinavia, both economically and, not least, culturally. Historically, herders have handled seasonal changing environmental conditions by moving herds across huge areas between winter- and summer grazing ranges. To cope with sudden vegetation shortages, difficult winter conditions, pests, and losses to carnivores, Saami reindeer herders have often practised herd size accumulation as a risk management tool. Climate models predict more variable future winter conditions in the Scandinavian Arctic. This has the potential to negatively affect reindeer husbandry and make reindeer herding even more vulnerable to potential external limiting factors such as forestry and predation by carnivores, negatively affecting the welfare of the Sami.

Here we report on a discrete choice, contingent valuation study conducted with Saami reindeer herders in Sweden and Norway. The study aims to reveal the optimal adaption strategy as seen by the individual herder, depending on how the herder weighs non-market values and harvesting income to identify adaption strategies. Specifically, the study aims to compare herd reduction strategies to increased winter foddering as adaptations to climate change. All respondents are faced with six discrete choices, three dealing with herd reduction and three dealing with increased winter foddering. The three choices represent three different levels of severity of climate change. These levels have been developed using a database for climate change scenarios developed by the UN Climate Panel. Using 1985-2014 as the reference period, scenarios were selected based on an average of this model collection.

Intended journal: Environmental and Resource Economics



An overview of climate change effects on reindeer herders in Sweden and Norway

Authors: Erlend Dancke Sandorf, Irmelin Slettemoen, Göran Bostedt, and Anne Borge Johannesen

Reindeer herding is of great importance to Saami communities, the only indigenous population of Scandinavia, both economically and, not least, culturally. This paper aims to determine to what extent climate change will affect reindeer husbandry and make reindeer herding vulnerable to potential external limiting factors. Another objective is to determine the cultural and intrinsic values and the income derived from reindeer husbandry and their importance to the modern Norwegian and Swedish reindeer herder household, including as an adaptation strategy in the face of climate change.

The paper reports the results of a household survey aiming to quantify market and non-market values of reindeer husbandry. This survey was implemented in reindeer herding communities in Sweden and Norway, covering productive and non-productive environments and minor and more carnivore-dense areas. An underlying hypothesis tested is that climate change adds to other factors, such as the presence of wild carnivores, that creates stress for the reindeer herder. The survey, therefore, includes questions addressing the perception of the impact of climate change on reindeer husbandry and its importance compared with other factors that create anxiety and insecurity in everyday life as a reindeer owner.

Previous research has shown that the intrinsic utility of being an active reindeer herder plays an important role in determining the supply of reindeer meat . For this reason, questions about how important reindeer husbandry is to the respondent and the main reason why they work with reindeer herding are also included.

Intended journal: Pastoralism



Optimal adaption strategies for sustainable reindeer husbandry in the face of climate change

Authors: Göran Bostedt, Anne Johannesen, Erlend Dancke Sandorf, and Irmelin Slettemoen

Climate change affects natural environments (IPCC 2014), including the distribution and conservation of wild species and the possibility of using wilderness areas for various activities like pastures for livestock grazing, harvesting natural resources, and human recreation. IPCC projections indicate that the mean annual temperature will increase, and most substantially so at higher latitudes (Solomon et al., 2007). Temperature increases affect icing during winter, the onset of spring and the length of the autumn, all of which affect reindeer herding pasture conditions and grazing availability. However, climate changes may have contrasting effects on grazing conditions and animal body mass, depending on the geographical location of the reindeer herding grazing areas. Consequently, the economic impact and optimal adaption strategies may differ between geographical locations.

This paper presents results from a contingent valuation survey in Norway and Sweden, evaluating and comparing reindeer herder's willingness to apply various adaptation strategies (herd reduction and supplementary feeding) to climate change. The analysis considers that climate changes may have contrasting effects on grazing conditions and animal weights across and within countries. Furthermore, the paper analyses to what extent the choice of adaption strategy depends on how reindeer herders weigh non-market values attached to the herd size.

A bioeconomic model is used to derive optimal adaption strategies across geographical locations, taking reindeer's non-market values into consideration. The bio-economic model allows other external factors than climate changes limiting grazing areas, such as encroachment and predators, to account for any differences in welfare consequences between more or less vulnerable areas.

Intended journal: Land Use Policy

Implications of climate and biodiversity change for coastal Saami wellbeing

Authors: Camilla Brattland and Bente Sundsvold

How are narratives about change connected to images of coastal Saami well-being, and can narrating positive change be used to increase well-being? Building on results from several research projects documenting the historical use and ongoing caring practices for the Porsanger fjord seascape, this article presents an overview of the implications of climate and biodiversity change for coastal Sámi well-being.

Through map-based interviews and collaborations with local knowledge institutions and community-based researchers in the field, the impacts of climate and biodiversity change on well-being in terms of the level of subsistence and nature use were collated and analysed. Compared to how other Arctic indigenous peoples identify climate change as impacting subsistence use, interviews with resource users in Porsanger identified a lack of identification of climate change as influencing coastal Sámi well-being. On the contrary, rapid biodiversity change and governance failure were the main factors impacting well-being over time and in several phases. The first phase (1985 - 2004) started with an invasion of seals, followed by a failure to protect local cod stocks from overfishing, which resulted in the reduction of cod fisheries as a source of income and well-being. This influenced the use of nature for subsistence and a source of well-being, as fishing grounds emptied of fish and outmigration from rural districts ensued. The second phase was initiated by the invasion of king crab and the failure to govern local access to the fisheries, resulting in a troublesome period followed by a temporary boom in local fisheries (2004 to approximately 2011). The temporary rise in fisheries activities led to continuity in nature and subsistence use for young families who gained their income from a combination of king crab and cod fisheries through formal occupations. However, recent years have witnessed a dramatic exit from rural communities such as Repvåg. Here inhabitants are no longer permanently settled but only keep up seasonal nature and subsistence use such as berry picking and harvesting of eggs from islands in the summer.

We developed a series of StoryMaps to narrate temporal and spatial changes in land and seascape use and in contributions from nature to humans over time. The narratives mediate a rich and complex story of multiple changes in the Porsanger fjord seascape, which may change the narrative of dramatic biodiversity change leading to outmigration and loss of well-being. The relevant question is if these StoryMaps can also contribute to changing the dominant narratives from loss to building up capacity and well-being in the Porsanger fjord in the future? This will be investigated through narrating and discussing the positive aspects of change in the past, combined with ongoing initiatives to revitalise and create new values from the fjord.

Intended journal: Polar Geography

FutureArcticLives

FutureArcticLives

Harvest control rules and adaptive local management initiatives in Porsanger

Author: Arne Eide

Porsanger is a Norwegian municipality in the northernmost part of the country with a population of about 4000. More than half live in Lakselv, at the southern end of the Porsanger fjord. Most of the remaining population is found along the western coast of the fjord. The Porsanger fjord is the fourth longest fjord in Norway, stretching over a distance of about 123 km from north to south and more than 20 km wide.

The settlements around Porsanger reflect that the fjord has always been the population's most important source of food and income. The fjord ecosystem is complex and heterogeneous (Fuhrmann et al., 2015), and different fisheries are defined spatially and seasonally. In an EcoPath study of the fjord, more than 60 distinct groups of species were identified (Pedersen et al., 2018). Economically the local cod fishery was by far the most important until recently when the king crab fishery took over (Fuhrmann et al., 2015).

As an ecosystem approach to management, Harvest control rules (HCR) have been developed for the most important commercial stocks in the Northeast Atlantic Ocean (Kvamsdal et al., 2016). The basic principle of HCR is to employ different benchmarks to decide the present exploitation rate given a predefined preferred stock size. The ecosystem perspective involves uncertainties and other considerations that must be incorporated through the best available knowledge and assessments. Since HCR methodology does not require inputs from modelling procedures (though such inputs certainly are used), it is possible to apply available heuristic knowledge and common-sense statements. As such, HCR represents an expert system, providing numerous possibilities for development and extension (Eide, 2017). The HCR benchmarks employed within the Norwegian fisheries use a range of model estimates of two stock indicators: The current fishing mortality rate and spawning biomass.

Herring, capelin, sand eel and shrimp are important preys of cod, haddock and saithe in the Porsanger fjord. The fjord is inhabited by coastal cod, while migrating cod visit the fjord during the spawning season at the beginning of each year. Coastal cod spawn in locations along the western side of the fjord and used to be the economically most important species in the local fishery. It remains important, but the king crab fishery is today by far the most profitable fishery of the fjord. Although the cod, saithe, flounder and herring fisheries have declined during the king crab invasion, model studies do not support the claim that these fisheries have been repressed by king crab (Pedersen et al., 2018). Coastal cod catches are separated into coastal and migrating cod based on otolith growth zones.

The paper will present the Porsanger fjord ecosystem, the historical and current use of the fjord, and the present management challenges. The reader is introduced to the harvest control rules (HCR) concept, followed by a discussion of how HCR can be utilised in local management in the Porsanger fjord. The focus will be on possible management rules and relevant benchmarks rather than how they could be organised within the municipality.

Intended journal: Marine Policy



The potential for nature-based solutions: the role of understanding the possibilities for different actors in historically developed scaled systems

Authors: Carina Keskitalo, Maria Pettersson and WP4 participants

Nature Based Solutions (NBS) have recently, and not the least through EU policy, been highlighted as a climate change adaptation and mitigation tool. In particular, it has been developed as a contrast to a historical focus on hard engineering solutions, to instead emphasise for instance restoration, protection, management to support natural or semi-natural ecosystems, and creation of features such as for instance wetlands. However, it has also been noted that the effectiveness of these may differ depending on situation (Chausson et al., 2020). For instance, it has been noted that "the new NBS concept should be perceived as an opportunity, but also as a challenge since a good understanding of ecosystem processes is needed, a diversity of actors must be engaged and a broad set of societal facts/issues needs to be included and integrated" (Nesshöver et al., 2017).

To strengthen the role of NBS in improving policy on societal challenges, Albert et al. (2017) put forward three criteria for the application of NBS. According to the authors, NBS: (a) "need to provide simultaneous benefits for society, the economy and nature". To qualify as a nature-based solution, the benefits of the approach thus need to serve all dimensions of sustainable development; (b) "should be understood to represent a transdisciplinary umbrella", that is, including already existing attempts to address or accomodate similar challenges within different areas; (c) "need to be introduced gradually", in order to evaluate and calibrate its function in different context (Albert et al., 2017).

As with all policy instruments, it is thus important to tailor local solutions - NBS is not an exception to this - as well as to acknowledge that many of the solutions that qualify as 'nature-based' are not new inventions. Rather they can be seen as new ways of applying existing knowledge and practices in order to combat climate change.

On this basis, this article problematises the concept of NBS as an addition to the debate, and discusses the extent to which actors at the different levels can implement NBS to adapt to and mitigate climate change.

Intended journal: Ecology and Society



Scope for local use and adaptation in the regulatory frameworks relating to natural resources in Sweden and Norway

Authors: Maria Pettersson, Stine Rybraten and Carina Keskitalo.

Norway, Sweden and Finland are often seen as having a specific relation to nature. In this manuscript, the regulatory frameworks in Norway and Sweden are compared regarding the scope for local use and adaptation provided by the regulatory frameworks relating to natural resources.

How the use of nature and its embedded resources, including relations in hunting, fishing and reindeer husbandry in northern Sweden and northern Norway, are discussed, with particular focus on the Swedish regulatory framework concerning the Norwegian Finnmark Act. The study compares the Finnmark Act case and the protection it affords local resource users with that in northern Sweden under general Swedish and municipal regulation systems. The study thereby poses the question - Can the Finnmark act be seen as a way to consider the rights of all resource users on a local, regional basis, or should it be seen as related more to an international discussion of ethnically based rights?

Intended journal: Environmental Policy and Governance?

FutureArcticLives

References

ACIA 2005. Arctic Climate Impact Assessment – Scientific Report. Berner, et al. (eds.). https://acia.amap.no/

AHDR 2014. Arctic Human Development Report: Regional Processes and Global Linkages – Volume II (2010–2014). https://oaarchive.arctic-council.org/handle/11374/51

Albert, C., Spangenberg, J. and Schröter, B. 2017. Nature-based solutions: Criteria. Nature 543, 315. https://doi.org/10.1038/543315b

AMAP 2013. Arctic Ocean Acidification. Arctic Monitoring and Assessment Program, Oslo, Norway. https://www.amap.no/documents/download/3296/inline

Arctic Council. 2016. Arctic Resilience Report. M. Carson and G. Peterson (eds). https://oaarchive.arctic-council.org/handle/11374/1838

ASI 2010. Arctic Social Indicators report. Nordic Council of Ministers. http://hdl.handle.net/11374/39

Boye TK, Simon MJ, Laidre KL, Rigét F, Stafford KM. 2020. Seasonal detections of bearded seal (Erignathus barbatus) vocalisations in Baffin Bay and Davis Strait in relation to sea ice concentration. Polar Biology 43:1493–1502. Springer Berlin Heidelberg. Available from https://doi.org/10.1007/s00300-020-02723-1.

Breum, M. 2013. Når isen forsvinder: Danmark som stormagt i Arktis, Grønlands rigdomme og kampen om Nordpolen (When the ice disappears: Denmark as a major power in the Arctic, the riches of Greenland and the battle for the North Pole), Gyldendal [In Danish].

CAFF 2013. Arctic Biodiversity Assessment: Status and Trends in Arctic Biodiversity. https://www.caff.is/assessment-series/233-arctic-biodiversity-assessment-2013

Chambault, P. et al., 2020. The impact of rising sea temperatures on an Arctic top predator, the narwhal. Scientific Reports 10:1–10. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-020-75658-6.

Chambault, P., Albertsen, CM., Patterson, TA., Hansen, RG., Tervo, O., Laidre, KL., Heide-Jørgensen, MP. 2018. Sea surface temperature predicts the movements of an Arctic cetacean: The bowhead whale. Scientific Reports 8: 1–12. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-018-27966-1

Chausson, A., Turner, B., Seddon, D., Chabaneix, N., Girardin, C. A., Kapos, V., ...and Seddon, N. 2020. Mapping the effectiveness of nature-based solutions for climate change adaptation. Global Change Biology 26(11): 6134–6155. https://doi.org/10.1111/gcb.15310

Descamps, S. et al., 2017. Circumpolar dynamics of a marine top-predator track ocean warming rates. Global Change Biology 23:3770–3780. https://doi.org/10.1111/gcb.13715

Díaz, S., et al., 2018. Assessing nature's contributions to people. Science 359(6373): 270–272. http://dx.doi.org/10.1126/science.aap8826

ECONOR 2008 and 2015. The Economy of the North. Statistics Norway.



Eide, A. 2017. Substituting model-based indicators in Harvest Control Rules by observations using fuzzy logic methodology. ICES Journal of Marine Science 75(3): 977–987. http://dx.doi.org/10.1093/icesjms/fsx227

Fuhrmann, MM., Pedersen, T., Ramasco, V., and Nilssen, E.M. 2015. Macrobenthic biomass and production in a heterogenic subarctic fjord after invasion by the red king crab. Journal of Sea Research 106: 1–13. http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/J.SEARES.2015.09.003

George, JC., Druckenmiller, ML., Laidre, KL., Suydam, R., Person, B. 2015. Bowhead whale body condition and links to summer sea ice and upwelling in the Beaufort Sea. Progress in Oceanography 136: 250–262. http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.pocean.2015.05.001.

Hausfather, Z. and Peters, GP. 2020. Emissions – the 'business as usual' story is misleading. Nature 577:618–620. https://doi.org/10.1038/d41586-020-00177-3

Heide-Jørgensen, MP., et al. 2020. Some like it cold: Temperature-dependent habitat selection by narwhals. Ecology and Evolution 10:8073–8090. https://doi.org/10.1002/ece3.6464

Hendriksen, K. 2013. Grønlands bygder – økonomi og udviklingsdynamik (Greenland Settlements - Economy and Development Dynamics), Inussuk, Arktisk forskningsjournal 3, Greenlands Self Rule [In Danish].

Hendriksen, K. and Jørgensen, U. 2015. Hunting and fishing settlements in Upernavik district of Northern Greenland: challenged by climate, centralisation and globalisation. Polar Geography 38: 123-145. https://doi.org/10.1080/1088937X.2015.1034222

Hendriksen, K. and Hoffmann, B. 2017a. Greenlandic water and sanitation systems - identifying system constellation and challenges. Journal Environmental Science and Pollution Research, 25:32964–32974. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11356-017-9556-6

Hoffmann, B., Hendriksen, K. and Jørgensen, U. 2022. Building a Livelihood in the Arctic: Infrastructures and Settlement Patterns Conditioning the Exploitation of Natural Resources. In Book: More than nature. * Forthcoming

Hoover, C., Pitcher, T., and Christensen, V. 2013a. Effects of hunting, fishing and climate change on the Hudson Bay marine ecosystem: II. Ecosystem model future projections. Ecological Modelling 264: 143–156. http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.ecolmodel.2013.01.010.

Hoover C, Pitcher T, Christensen V. 2013b. Effects of hunting, fishing and climate change on the Hudson Bay marine ecosystem: I. Re-creating past changes 1970-2009. Ecological Modelling 264:130–142. http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.ecolmodel.2013.02.005.

Hoegh-Guldberg, O., et al. 2018. Chapter 3: Impacts of 1.5°C global warming on natural and human systems. In: Global Warming of 1.5 °C. An IPCC special report on the impacts of global warming of 1.5 °C above preindustrial levels and related global greenhouse gas emission pathways [...]. Special Report, Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change:175–311.

Hughes, T. 1987. 'The evolution of large technical systems. In: Bijker, W.E., Hughes, T.P., Pinch, T. (eds.) The social construction of technological systems. New directions in the sociology and history of technology. MIT Press, Cambridge.



Huntington, HP., et al. 2020. Evidence suggests potential transformation of the Pacific Arctic ecosystem is underway. Nature Climate Change 10: 342–348. http://dx.doi.org/10.1038/s41558-020-0695-2.

IPCC, 2014. Climate Change 2014: Synthesis Report. Contribution of Working Groups I, II and III to the Fifth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, Pachauri, RK. and Meyer LA. (eds.). IPCC, Geneva, Switzerland, 151 pp.

IPCC, 2021: Climate Change 2021: The Physical Science Basis. Contribution of Working Group I to the Sixth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, Masson-Delmotte, V., Zhai, P., Pirani, A., Connors, SL., Péan, C., Berger, S., Caud, N., Chen, Y., Goldfarb, L., Gomis, MI., Huang, M., Leitzell, K., Lonnoy, E., Matthews, JBR., Maycock, TK., Waterfield, T., Yelekçi, O., Yu, R. and Zhou, B. (eds.). Cambridge University Press.

Jenouvrier, S., Weimerskirch, H., Barbraud, C., Park, YH., Cazelles, B. 2005. Evidence of a shift in the cyclicity of Antarctic seabird dynamics linked to climate. Proceedings of the Royal Society B: Biological Sciences 272: 887–895. https://doi.org/10.1098/rspb.2004.2978

Kvamsdal, SF., Eide, A., Ekerhovd, NA., Enberg, K., Gudmundsdottir, A., Hoel, AH., . . . Vestergaard, N. 2016. Harvest control rules in modern fisheries management. Elementa: Science of the Anthropocene 4 (1): 000114. https://doi.org/10.12952/journal.elementa.000114

Laidre, KL., Born, EW., Heagerty, P., Wiig, Ø., Stern, H., Dietz, R., Aars, J., Andersen, M. 2015b. Shifts in female polar bear (*Ursus maritimus*) habitat use in East Greenland. Polar Biology 38: 879–893. http://dx.doi.org/10.1007/s00300-015-1648-5.

Louis, M., et al. 2020. Influence of past climate change on phylogeography and demographic history of narwhals, *Monodon monoceros*. Proceedings of the Royal Society B: Biological Sciences 287. https://doi.org/10.1098/rspb.2019.2964

Nesshöver, C., Assmuth, T., Irvine, K.N., Rusch, G.M., Waylen, K.A., Delbaere, B., ... and Wittmer, H. 2017. The science, policy and practice of nature-based solutions: An interdisciplinary perspective. Science of the Total Environment 579: 1215–1227. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.scitotenv.2016.11.106

Nielsen, MR., Meilby, H., Smith-Hall, C., Pouliot, M. and Treue, T. 2018. The importance of wild meat in the Global South. Ecological Economics, 146: 696-705. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ecolecon.2017.12.018

Nielsen, MR., Pouliot, M., Meilby, H., Smith-Hall, C. and Angelsen, A. 2017. Global patterns and determinants of the economic importance of bushmeat. Biological Conservation 215: 277-287. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.biocon.2017.08.036

Nordregio 2010 Status for bosteder i Grønland (Status for settlements in Greenland), Stockholm, Nordic Co-operation [In Danish], www.kamikposten.dk/lokal/last/container/da/hvadermeningen/pdf/status_for_bosteder_i_gro enland_2010.pdf.

NRC 2014. The Arctic in the Anthropocene: Emerging research questions. https://doi.org/10.17226/18726.

FutureArcticLives

Nuttal, M. 2008. Climate change and the warming politics of autonomy in Greenland. In Indigenous Affairs 1-2. www.iwgia.org/images/publications/IA_1-2_08_Arctic.pdf

Pedersen, T., Fuhrmann, MM., Lindstrøm, U., Nilssen, EM., Ivarjord, T., Ramasco, V., . . . Nilssen, KT. 2018. Effects of the invasive red king crab on food web structure and ecosystem properties in an Atlantic fjord. Marine Ecology Progress Series, 596 , 13–31. https://doi.org/10.3354/meps12548

Rasmussen, RO. 2005. Analyse af fangerhvervet i Grønland. NOREGIO. Greenland Home Rule Government.

Slater, T., Hogg, AE., and Mottram, R.. 2020. Ice-sheet losses track high-end sea-level rise projections. Nature Climate Change 10: 877–878. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41558-020-0893-y

Solomon, SD., Manning, QM., Chen, Z., Marquis, M., Averyt, KB., Tignor, M. and Miller, HL. (eds.) 2007. Climate change 2007 – the physical science basis. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge. https://www.ipcc.ch/report/ar4/wg1/

StatisticsGreenland(2021b)Online.AvailableHTTP:https://bank.stat.gl/pxweb/da/Greenland/Greenland_AR_AR30/ARXBFB4.px/AR30/ARXBFB4.px/HTTP:

StatisticsGreenland(2021a)Online.AvailableHTTP:https://bank.stat.gl/pxweb/da/Greenland/Greenland_IE/IEX2PROD.px/

The Fisheries Commission (2021) Fiskerikommissionens Betænkning, Government of Greenland [In Danish], https://fiskerforum.dk/wp-content/uploads/FiskeriKomm-betaenk-2021-DK-LOW.pdf